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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
A27 Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited
Gurgaon

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of A2Z Waste
Management (Ludhiana) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as
at 31 March 2023, and its financial performance (including other comprehensive income) and its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further desctibed in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of out teport. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
tulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requitements and the ICAD’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Mattets

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the financial year ended 31 March, 2023. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these mattets.

We do not have any matters to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have
tulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements section of our treport. Accordingly, our audit included the petformance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedutes, including the procedures petformed to
address the matters, if any, provide the basis for out audit opinion on the accompanyiggstaudalone Ind
AS financial statements. P o
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the ptreparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued theteunder. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act;
safeguarding the assets of the Company; preventing and detecting frauds and other irregulatities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recotds, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company ot to
cease operations, ot has no realistic altetnative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errot, and to issue an auditor’s repott
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matetial misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can atise from fraud or etror and ate considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usets taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exetcise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedutes responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence
that 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, ot the overtide of internal conttol.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the citcumstances. Undet section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matetial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concetn. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditot’s repott to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements ot, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditot’s repott.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative matetiality and qualitative
factors in (1) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to comtunicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current petiod and ate
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in out auditot’s report unless law ot regulation
precludes public disclosure about the mattet or when, in exttemely rate circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Repott) Order, 2020 (“the Otrder”) issued by the Central
Government of India after consultation with the National Financial Reporting Authority (NFRA)
constituted under section 132 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure I, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Otdet.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repott that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the—best
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; Sl

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by t
as it appears from our examination of those books;
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The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 and
taken on record by the Board of Directots, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refet to out sepatate report in “Annexure I1”; and

In out opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March, 2023 has been paid /

provided by the company to its ditectots in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act.

h. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in out opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in its
Standalone Ind AS financial statements;

1. The Company has made provision, as required undet the applicable law ot accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

1. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

v. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other soutces ot kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person ot entity, including foreign entities(“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing ot otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by ot on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) ot provide any guarantee, secutity or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no fund shave been received by the Company from any
petsons ot entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Patties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, ditectly or indirectly, lender
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaties”) or provide any guarantee, security gr #igilike on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and P i"%
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(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and approptiate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

lh?m. 027523N
Date: 18.05.2023

Place: Gurgaon M.1 &- 5006
UDIN: 23509623BGXMRC7824
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Annexure-I

Referred to in paragraph (1) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of out report of even date on
the standalone financial statement of A2Z Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited (‘the Company’) for the year
ended March 31, 2023.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the putpose of teporting a true and fair view on the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we repozt

that:

i) (a) (A)The Company has maintained propet records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) As per the physical verification program, Propetty, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by

the management during the year and no material discrepancies wete noticed on such vetification. In our
opinton, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets-

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

@
©

i) @)

()

the records of the company, the company does not hold any immovable property, so the
provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets)
and intangible assets during the yeat.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records provided, no proceedings have
been initiated during the year or ate pending against the Company as at Match 31, 2023 for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of out examination of the
records of the Company, the company does not have any inventories. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(i1)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of cutrent assets. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

(iif) (a) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and granted any loans

or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (i) of the Otder is
not applicable.

(Its. in lacs)
| Loans Advances in Guarantees | Security
nature of loans

A. Aggregate amount granted/
provided during the year:

- Fellow Subsidiaries 35.09

- Joint Ventures |-
-/ Assoclates
- Others

--w-u-rr-vm-r

B. Balance outstanding as at |

U UVU\?I l
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balance sheet date in respect of
above cases:*

- Fellow Subsidiaries [ 35.09
- Joint Ventures
- Associates

- Others

* Gross amounts, without considering provisions made

The investments made, guarantees provided, secutity given and the terms and conditions of the grant of
all the above-mentioned loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided, during the
year are, in our opinion, prima facie, ate not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided in eatlier years ate payable on demand.
During the year the Company has not demanded such loan or advances in the natute of loan. Having
regard to the fact that the repayment of principal or interest has not been demanded by the Company, in
our opinion the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest ate regulat.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, no demand has been raised for repayment of principal or interest thereon. Having regard to
the fact that the repayment of principal or interest has not been demanded by the Company, in our
opinion there are no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year,
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the
same parties.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedutes performed,
during the year the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
tepayable on demand or without specifying any terms ot petiod of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable.

(Is. in lacs)
All Parties | Promoters | Related Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of
loans

- Repayable on demand (A) 35.09 35.09
- Agreement does not specify any terms ot | - :
petiod of repayment (B)
Total (A+B) |-
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of | 100%
loans to the total loans

| 100%

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and
investments made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Ac
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(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi) To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance
g P
of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s
products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii) (a) The Company is generally not regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable. Undisputed amounts payable in respect theteof which were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable are as follows:

Nature of statute _ Nature of Amount Period to which the amount
dues (Rs. 1n lacs) relates
Income Tax Act, 1961 TDS 76.81 | June 2013- September 2022
Punjab Value Added Tax Act, Sales Tax 1.19 | December 2010 - July 2016
2008
. GST Act 2017 GST e 6'10. December 2017 — Sep_tember 2021
L Finance Act_, 1994 Service Tax 1.76 | April 2012 - June 2017 N

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues in respect of Goods &
Service tax, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of excise, value added tax and cess that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(vitf)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of out examination of the
records of the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that wete
sutrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(ix) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial
nstitution, bank or debenture-holders during the yeat.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any financial
institution, bank or debenture-holders duting the year.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the terms loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans had
been taken.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long
term purposes.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not raised loans during the year
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
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(x)(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order are not
applicable.

(b)During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partly or optionally convertible) and hence reporting under
clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (@)According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed ot reported during the course of
our audit.

(b)To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, thete were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year which remained unattended by the competent authorities.

(xif)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not applicable.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related patties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xtv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, internal audit system is not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under
clause (xiv)(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with its directors. Accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 ate not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not requited to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934 and hence reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. The Group
does not have any CIC as part of the group and accotdingly repotting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Ordet
is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 138.29 lacs duting the financial year covered by
our audit and Rs. 200.45 lacs in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviif) Thete has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company duting the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities (as pet the payment schedule/ re-scheduled), other '1_i'f_1r|11:t|inn
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the andit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and/ or certificate
with respect to meeting financial obligations by the Company as and when they fall due. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guatantee not any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a petiod of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)(2)The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundted crote or more, or turnovet of rupees one
thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crote or more during the immediately preceding
financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Otder is not applicable for the year.

(b) Provisions of the Act relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) does not apply to the company
and accordingly reporting under clause (xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xxi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by
the auditors of the subsidiaties, associates and joint ventures included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, provided to us by the
Management of the Company and based on- the identification of matters of qualifications or adverse
remarks in their CARO reports by the respective component auditors and provided to us, we report that
the auditors of such companies have not reported any qualifications ot adverse rematks in their CARO
repott.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Regn.(N . 027523N

Date: 18.05.2023
Place: Gurgaon
UDIN: 23509623BGXMRC7824
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Anncxure - 11 to  the Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our repott
to the members of the company of even date)

Repott on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the inrernal fnancial controls over financial reporting of A27 Waste Management (1 adhiana)
Limnited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the yeat ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s managemerit is responsible for cspablishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finanecial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the aceounting records, and rthe nmely 1!1‘-;*.}1:1::11"1:111 of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditots’ Responsibility

Our tesponsibility is to express an opinion on the € “ompany's internal financial controls over financial teporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Conttols over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICATI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Compamnies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial contrals, both appiil‘.:ihlr to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Insutute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Srandards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporring and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testng and evaluating the design and Operating
offectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or ettor.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apptoptiate to provide a basis for out audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial teporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial repotting and the preparation of standalone financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions ate recorded as necessary to petmit preparation
of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance tegarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, ot disposition of the company's assets that could have a matetial effect on the
standalone financial statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, matetial misstatements due to etror or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future petiods are subject to the tisk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ot that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2023, based on the internal control over financial tepotting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Regn. 027523N

Date: 18.05.2023
Place: Gurgaon M=
UDIN: 23509623BGXMRC7824




Batance sl.. 21 a at March 31, 2023
(“Inless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Assets

Non-current assets
Propetty, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Financial asscts

Investments

Other financial asscts
Non-current tax asscts (nct)
Othcet non-cutrent assets

Current assets
I'inancial asscts
"I'rade recetvables
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial asscts
Other current asscts

Total Assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Iiquity shate capital
Other equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

I*inancial Liabilitics
Botrowings

Provistons

Other non-current habilitics

Current liabilities
Jiinancial Liabilitics
Borrowings
Trade payables
(@) Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small enterptises
(b) Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro entetpriscs and small
enterptises
Other financial liabilities
Other cutrent labilitics

Provisions
Total Equity & Liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
"I'his is the balance sheet referred to in our teport of even date.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Regn M TSN

>

Mata Prasad
Proprietor
M No. 509623

Place : Gurgaon
Date : 18.05.2023

UDIN © 225096Q3BGAMR CHHY

Note

w

~N A

10
11
12

13
14

15
16
17

18
19

20
21

22

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
106.72 151.68
4,074.53 4,074.53
11.05 11.05
8.22 8.22
150.26 150.26
267.52 267.52
4,618.30 4,663.25
869.88 869.88
4.38 9.76
35.60 0.51
70.29 70.59
247.35 207.27
1,227.49 1,158.01
5.845.79 5,821.26
5.00 5.00
{E75.21) (92,33
(A70,21) (H7.33)
784.90 698.43
218 1.77
2,311.46 2,311.46
3,098.54 3,011.66
450.85 395.33
0.65 1.06
1,312.37 1,261.70
1,160.62 1,145.92
92.92 92.66
0.05 0.26
3,017,406 2.896.,93
5,#45.79 5 B2L2G

For and on behalf of the board of directors

<X
o

SN\ S

Dilbag
Director
(DIN 07369758)

Moty

-(-Hllah.mdill'i:h'u.‘l;lik:tr

Company Sccretary

Y
( by
|"'£_..-"-* e P
Surender Singh

Director

(DIN 07713768)
|
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Revenue
Other Income
Total income

Expenses

Employee benefit expenses

I'inance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit / (Loss) before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit / (Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income
A DItems that will not be reclassificd to profit and loss

if)Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B DItems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

i)Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income

Profit / (Loss) per equity share
Basic (in INR)
Diluted (in INR)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached.

For MP Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Regn IETSAN

Proprictor
M No. 509623

Place : Gurgaon
Date : 18.05.2023

UDI® Q3509693 BGRM RCA22Y

Note

23

25
26
27

28

29
29

@m,n@
Anarfc MM{/

Chief Fxecutive Officer

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2.53

2.53

23.10 21.62

101.63 142.36

4498 48.22

13.56 39.00

183.27 251.20

(183.27) (248.67)

(183.27) (248.67)

0.12 4.33

0.12 4.33
(183.15) (244.34)
(366.53) (497.34)
(366.53) (497.34)

;f?f.‘}.&h':“'-" e

~ Dilbag
Director

(DIN 07369758)

) I._flf\x L

Company Secrotnny

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Saratin

Surender Singh
Director
TI7713768)

[

'\.'\

_.fJ(Ell_’ull-r'ﬂunml
S Fnsaneial Officer



dStatement oI casn NOwWS Ior the year ended March 31, 2U235

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

A

Cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

Net loss before tax
Adjustment for
Rent

Interest expensc
Interest income
Depreciation
LESOP expensc

Operating loss before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Loans

T'rade receivables

Other financial asscts

Other asscts

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Trade payables

Other liability

Provision

Other financial liability

Cash generated from / (used in) from operations
Current taxes paid (nct of refunds)

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities

Purchasc of fixed asscts (including CWIP)

Interest received

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities
Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities

Procceds from short term borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balances with banks in current accounts

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This 1s the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For MP Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Regn BERITHIIN =t
gn T

W

Mata Prasad -1 M. No. 50562
Proprictor FRN 027523N

M No. 509623

< i
A el
Place : Gurgaon "‘*-‘1-"_.---"’/

Date : 18.05.2023

UDTNS 22501689264k MR (H9QY,

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, _2023 March 31, 2022
(183.27) (248.67)
28.89
101.40 142.02
(2.53)
44.98 48.22
0.26 0.07
(36.62) (32.00)
(35.09) 84.87
18.58
0.30 (19.79)
(40.09) 39.52
50.26 (22.93)
0.26 5.31
0.33 0.67
32.62 (225.12)
(28.04) (150.88)
- 68.06
(28.04) (82.81)
(0.00) (0.00)
29.91
(0.00) 29.91
55.52 74.21
(32.86) (33.31)
22.66 40.90
(5.38) (12.00)
9.76 21.76
4,38 9.76

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1.04 1.04
3.34 8.73
4.38 9.76

Chicf Executive Officer

For and on behalf of the board of directors

g :“ ) \:\5\'1* AR

Dilbag
Director
(121 073697 58),
e "1 ¥ Wi i ]
\l
Bhagia- Mitkdar

Company Secretary

afain

- 2
\E,Llj'n'c.li’ -

Surender Singh
I'Hpecton

nancral Officer



A27Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED

Statements of change in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Notes Number of shares Amount
A Equity share capital
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of INR 10 each
Balance as at April 1, 2022 13 50,000 5.00
Changes in equity share capital
Balance as at March 31, 2023 50,000 5.00
Notes Equity Component of ESOP Reserve Reserv.es and Su.rplus- Total
Preference shares Retained eatnings
B Other Equity
As at April 1, 2022 14 1,684.67 0.80 (1,777.80) (92.33)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the period - (183.27) (183.27)
Add: ESOP expense during the period . 0.26 0.26
Add [Less]: Other comprehensive income 0.12 0.12
As at March 31, 2023 1,684.67 1.07 (1,960.95) (275.22)
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached.
Fot MP Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the board of directors
Chartered Accountants
Regn G752
— L
S\ s
2o voeet L
Mata Prasa - Dilbag Surender Singh
Proprietor Director Director
M No. 5k (Din No. 07369758)  (Din i, H7713768)
\ABIm & "4 fiapt Kumar

Place : Gurgaon Chidl Hxecutive Officer nmp any Secretary
Date : 18.05.2023

UDING 93509693 QG YNMRCADIY

o 1_|.rr.'|'ﬁu.ui Officer
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Note 1: Nature of operations

A27, Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited (‘A22’ or ‘the Company’ or ‘SPV’) was the wholly owned subsidiary of Greeneffect Waste Management Limited till
14.07.2019 and is now a subsidiary of Infraservices I.td. with effect from 15.07 2019 and associate of Greeneffect Waste Mangement Limited It was incorporated at
National Capital Territory of Delhi and Iaryana on July 14, 2011 for providing Waste Management Services

The Company’s main business primarily would include Door to door collection, intermediate transportation ctc
Recent accounting pronouncement
New Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) issued

Amendment to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifics that to be considered a business, an integrated sct of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly contribute to the ability to create output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.

These amendments arc applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or alter the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after the 1 April 2020 and to assct acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period ‘I'his amendment had no impact on the financial statements of
the company.

Amendment to Ind AS 116, Leases
The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of

the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A

lessece that makes this clection accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the
change undcer Ind AS 116, if the change were not a lease modification.

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. In casc, a lessee has not yet approved the financial statements for
issue before the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied for annual ceporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2019. This amendment had
no impact on the financial statements of the company.

Amendments to Ind AS 1and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material
‘The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements makc on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information

»

about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, cither individually or in
combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influcnce dectsions made by the primary users. These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future impact to the

company.

Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are
directly affccted by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of
benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument. These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
as it does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entitics are required to make for hedging relationships to which the reliefs as per the amendments in
Ind AS 109 arc applied. These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. These amendments are not expected to have a
significant impact on the company's financial statements.

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Accounting:

‘The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notificd under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,
2006 (as amended) and other relavent provisions of the Act.

In 2016 the Company has not applied any new accounting policies or made other retrospective changes that have a material effect on the statement of financial
position as at 1 April 2015. Accordingly, the Company is not required to present a third statement of financial position as at that date However, the Company has
clected to provide this additional comparative information together with related notes as permitted by Ind AS 1 Presentation of [Financial Statements’

2.2 Foreign Currency Transactions:

‘The Company's fiancial statements are presented in INR, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Foreign currency transactions arc translated into the funcuonal currency of the Company, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot
exchange ratc).

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monctary items denominated in foreign currency
at year-end exchange rates are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates at the transaction datc), except for non-
monctary items measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

lixchange differences arising on the settlement of monctary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial
recognition during the period or in previous financial statements shall be recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetaty item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognised in other comprehensive
income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be

A BT
sl are translated as if the transactions of the ﬁllr-.:ll-ll o have (e 1.h|@yr1 oy itself.
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2.3 Segment Reporting

2.3.1 Business segments

Operating Scgments arc identified based on financial information that is regularly reviewed by the chicf operating decision maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of business segment. Scgments have been identified
and reported based on the nature of the products, the risks and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems. The Company is
operating into following segments — (i) Municipal Solid Waste Management(MSW) and (ii) Others represents trading of goods

2.4 Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a pecformance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. This variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (nct of variable consideration) is recognized only to the extent
that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

2.4.1 Interest Income:
Interest is recognised on a time proportion basts taking into account the amount outstanding and the ratc applicable

2.4.2 Other Income:

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists.

2.5 Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing are subscquently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or prodicton of a qualifying asscts arc capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for it's intended usc or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended usc or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.6 Other Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at
the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

All finite-lived intangible assets, including capitalised internally developed software, are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs arc amortised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated uscful lives. Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at cach reporting date. In addition, they arc subject to impairment
testing as descdbed in Note 2.9. The following uscful lives are applied:

* Software: 3-5 ycars

Amortisation has been included within depreciation, amortisation and impairment of nonfinancial assets.

Subsequent expenditures on the maintenance of computer software is expensed as incurred.

When an intangible assct is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal 1s determined as the difference between the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (comprising fittings and furniture) are initially recognised at acquisition cost or manufacturing cost, including any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asscts to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company’s management

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis to write down the cost less estimated residual value of Property, plant and cquipment The following uscful lives are
applied:

* Buildings : 3-60 ycars

* Plant and Jiquipment : 8-15 ycars .

* Furniture and Fixtures : 8-10 years

* Vehicles : 6-10 years

* Office Equipment : 5 years

* Computers : 3-6 years

Material residual value estimates and estimates of uscful life are updated as required, but at least annually

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of Property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assets and are recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

2.8 Leased Asscts

2.8.1 Finance leases

Management applies judgment in considering the substance of a lease agreement and whether it transfers substandally all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the leased asset. Key factors considered include the length of the lease term in relation to the economic lifc of the asset, the present valuc of the minimum lease
payments in relation to the asset’s fair value, and whether the Company obtains ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term.

For leases of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments arc first allocated to each component based on the relative fair values of the respective lease interests.

Each component is then evaluated separately for possible treatment as a finance lease, taking into consideration the-fiicl that land normally has an indefinite economic
. L o
life.
See Note 2.7 for the depreciation methods il ssgTial [nsirlyr assets held under finance leases. f
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2.8.2 Operating leases
All other leascs arc treated as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessee, payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expensc on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

2.9 Impairment testing of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

[For impairment asscssment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-gencrating units) As a result,
some asscts are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that arc
expected to benefit from synergics of a related business combination and represent the lowest level within the Company at which management monitors goodwill

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Company’s management as equivalent to its operating segments) arc tested for
impairment at least annually. All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s (or cash-gencrating unit’s) carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. To determine the valuc-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-gencrating unit
and determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked
to the Company’s latest approved budget, adjusted as nccessary to cxclude the cffects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are
determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and asset-specific risk factors

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that cash-generating unit Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-gencrating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its
carrying amount.

2.10 Financial Instruments
A financial instcument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assct of onc entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

2.10.1 Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asscts not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assct. The company currently have security deposits, investment in preference shares of subsidiary companies, trade
receivables, loans etcFinancial assets are derccognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial assct and
subscquently all the risks and rewards are tranferred. A financial liability is derccognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

2.10.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement of financial assets:

liinancial assets are classified as subscquently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other compreheasive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss
(VDL

A financial assct is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL :

a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial assct give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met and it is not designated as ac I'VIPL.:

a) the financial assct is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at F'VTPL. The Bank may designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FYOCI as at FV1PL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arisc. ‘The Bank has not applicd
fair value designation option for any financial asscts.

2.10.3 Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss [LICL] model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
assets and credit r1sk exposure:

a l'inancial assets that are debt instruments, and arc measured at amortised cost ¢ g. security deposits

b. Financial asscts that are available for salc.

¢ I'rade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Point ¢ provided above.

‘The application of simplified approach require the company to recognise the impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reportting date, right from its
initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial asscts and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
increasc in the credit rsk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. [[owever, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. Tf, in a subscquent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Lifetime ECI. are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

‘The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime 13CL which results from default cvents that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

CL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that arc due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive [ie, all cash shortfalls], discounted at the original IR, ECL impairment loss allowance [or reversal] recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘other expenses’. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below :
linancial asscts measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue reccivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance reducing the net carrying
amount. Until the assct meets write-off criteria, the Company docs not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment liss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basts ul shaiwid coeiii risk characteristics.
e - 2
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2.10.4 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities:

‘I'he measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilitics held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss Financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair valuc
through profit or loss arce designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 arc satisfied for liabilitics designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within cquity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair valuc through Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings arc subscquently measured at amortised cost using the 11IR method Gains and losscs are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that arc an integral part of the TIR. The IiIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and l.oss.

2.10.5 Reclassification of financial instruments:

‘I'he Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition .\fter initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which arc cquity instruments and financial liabilitics. Tor financial asscts which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing thosc assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations Such changes are cvident to external parties. A change in the
business model occurs when the Company cither begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifics financial assets,
it applics the reclassificaton prospectively from the reclassification date which is the fiese day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in
business model The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses [including impairment gains or losses| or interest. The Company did not
reclassify any financial asscts in the current period

2.10.6 Offsetting of financial instruments:
Ilinancial asscts and financial liabilitics are offsct and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to scttle on a net basis, to realise the asscts and scttle the liabilitics simultancously

2.11 Inventories

Inventorics are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing cach product (o its present Jocation and condition are accounted for as follows:

a. Raw Marcrials, Packing Material and Stores & Spare Parts: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first-in-first-out bass.

b. Tinished Goods and Work-in-Progress: Cost includes cost of direct matedals, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating
capacity, but excluding borrowtng costs. Cost is determined on first-in-first-out basts.

¢ Stock-in-Trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on
first-in-first-out basts.
Net realisable valuc is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

2.12 Income Taxes
Tax expensc recognised n profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other comprchensive income or directly in cquity.

Calculation of current tax 1s based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred income taxes
are calculated using the liability method.

Decferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary difference will be udlised against furare taxable
income 'This 1s assessed based on the Company’s forccast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenscs and specific limits on
the use of any unused tax loss or credit.

2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments maturing within 90 days from the
date of acquisition that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valuc.

2.14 Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been ssucd
Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium,
net of any related income tax benefits
Other components of cquity include the following:

® Remecasurement of net defined benefit liability - Comprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and the return on plan
assets (scc Note 2.15)

e Retained carnings includes all current and prior period retained profits and share-based employee remuneration. All transactions with owners of the parent are
recorded separately within equity. Dividend distributions payable to equity sharcholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have been approved in a
gencral mecting prior to the reporting date
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2.15 Post-employment benefits and short-term employece benefits

Post-employment benefit plans

‘The Company provides post-employment benefits through various defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined Contribution Plans :

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and employee state insurance are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds arc due.

Defined Benefit Plans :

Gratuity liability is defined bencfit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of cach
financial year. Hvery employce who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed
year of service.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the cffect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets, are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to Retained lamings through OCT in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements arc not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Leave Liability:

‘T'he employees of the Company are entitied to Jeave as per the leave policy of the Company The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward
beyond twelve months, as long term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long teem compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses should be recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits, including holiday entitlement, are current liabilities included in pension and other employee obligations, measured at the undiscounted
amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

2.16 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions for product warrantics, legal disputes, oncrous contracts or other claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of cconomic resources will be required from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably. ‘1iming or
amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions arc measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are 2 number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in scttlement is determined by considering the class of obligatons as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the dme value of
moncey 1s material.

Any rcimbursement that the Company is virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognised as a separate asscl. [Towever, this
assct may not exceed the amount of the related provision.

No liability 15 recognised if an outflow of cconomic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as contingent liabilitics
unless the outflow of resources is remote

1f the effect of the time value of moncy is matenial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate which reflects the current market assessment of time value of
money Government bond rate can be used as discount rate, as it is a riskfree pre-tax rate reflecting the time value of money. For this purpose, the discount rate should
also be reassessed at the end of cach reporting period, including the interim reporting date, if any.

2.17 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

Recognition of service revenues :

Determining when to recognisc revenues from after-sales services requires an understanding of both the nature and timing of the services provided and the customers’
pattern of consumption of those services, based on historical experience and knowledge of the market. (sce Note 2. 4).

Recognition of deferred tax assets :

T'he extent to which deferred tax asscts can be recognised 1s based on an assessment of the probability that future taxable income will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-forwards can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
cconomic limits or uncertaintics in various tax jurisdictions (sce Note 2.12)

2.18 Estimation Uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets, liabilites, income and expenses s
provided below. Actual results may be substantially different.

Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of cach asset or cash generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest
rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suttable discount rate (sce Note 2.9)

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at cach reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may change the udlity of certain software and T'T equipment

Inventories

Management cstimates the net realisable values of inventorics, taking into account the most eliable evidence available at each reporting date “I'he future realisation of
these inventories may be affected by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.

Construction contract revenue

Recognised amounts of construction contract revenues and related recetvables reflect management’s best estimate of cach contract’s outcome and stage of completion.
l'or more complex contracts in patticular, costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to significant estimation uncertainty (see Notc 2.4)

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and
anticipation of future salary increases. Virtaliin tobhase gustimpitions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses




A VLG awa SAS pUAAT VR TAAL ASALMAALAGE OLALLLIILLILD LUL LUL ylal CHUCU WTlalull Uiy LULT

Fair value measurement

Management uses valation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes arc not available) and non-financial assets. This
involves devcloping estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable
data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best information available Estimated fair values may vary from the actual
prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

2.19 Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective 1st April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method. The Company has applied the standard to its leases
with the comulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (1st April, 2019). Accordingly, previous period information has not been restated. The
Company asscsscs whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract.

The Company as lessee

A contract 15, or contains, a leasc if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assct for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

@ the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(11) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(1if) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-usc asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short term and leases of low
value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense over the term of the lease

"The right-of-usc asscts arc initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and uscful life of the underlying asset.

The lease lability is initially mcasured at the present value of the future lease payments. The leasc payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The leasc liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect intecest
on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a
change in the lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets.

The Company as lessor
i) Operating lease

Rental income from operating leascs is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight linc basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another

systematic basis is morc representative of the time pattern in which cconomic benefits from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating

and arranging an operating leasc arce added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recogniscd on a straight line basis over the lease term.
ii) Finance lease
When assets arc leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lcase payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross

receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net
investment method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.
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*A27 "WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

3 Property, plant and equipment

, Plant and Fumiture and . Tools and Office Capital Work

Particulars Computers K R Vehicles 3 . Total R
Equipments Fixtures equipment Equipments in progress

Gross Block
At 1st April 2022 0.52 200.58 2.69 417.86 111.59 3.52 736.76 4,074.53
Additions
Disposals
At 31st March 2023 0.52 200.58 2.69 417.86 111.59 3.52 736.76 4,074.53
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2022 0.52 124.98 1.26 346.33 108.51 3.49 585.09
Depreciation for the year 12.96 0.10 31.90 0.02 44.98
Disposals .
At 31st March 2023 0.52 137.94 1.36 378.24 108.51 3.50 630.06
Net Carrying Value as at 31st
March 2023 62.64 133 39.62 3.08 0.02 106.72 4,074.53
Gross Block
At 1st April 2021 0.52 200.58 2.69 417.86 111.59 3.52 736.76 4,074.53
Additions i
Disposals . -
At 31st March 2022 0.52 200.58 2.69 417.86 111.59 3.52 736.76 4,074.53
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2021 0.52 112.02 111 314.32 105.45 3.45 536.86 #
Depreciation for the year 12.96 015 32.01 3.06 0.04 48.22
Disposals .
At 31st March 2022 0.52 124.98 1.26 346.33 108.51 3.49 585.09 -
Net Carrying Value as at
31st March 2022 75.60 143 71.53 3.08 0.04 151.68 4,074.53
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Notes forming patt of the financial statements fot the yeat ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts ate in INR lacs)

Note 3.1: Capital work in progtess

Assets under construction comprises of expenditure for the Building and plant in the coutse of construction. The amount of

expenditure recognised in cattying amount of capital work in progtess ate as under.

As at As at
Match 31, 2023 Mazrch 31, 2022
Buildings under construction 1,111.98 1,111.98
Power plant equipment's under erection 1,923.24 1,923.24
Borrowing costs capitalised 184.87 184.87
Other expenses (directly attributable to construction/erection of assets)
Employee benefit expense 107.81 107.81
Depreciation 156.56 156.56
Other directly attributable expenses (including trial/test run expenses) 805.53 805.53
Less:- Revenue recognised duting trial tun period (215.47) (215.47)
Total 4,074.53 4,074.53
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Total
Leran 1-2 years 2-3 years Mote than 3 years
year
Projects in progress i
Projects temporarily . . 4.50 4,070.02 4,074.53
suspended
Total - - 4.50 4,070.02 4,074.53

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)




'A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
4 Investments
Trade Investments:
Investments in Equity Instruments of Subsidiarics 11.05 11.05
105 11.05
Details of Trade Investments:
Investment in Equity Instruments [Valued at cost]:
Subsidiary Companies [Unquoted]:
In fully paid-up cquity shares :
25,500 (Previous Year - 25,500) equity shares of Rs. 10 2.55 2.55
cach, fully paid up in Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions
Limited
50,000 (Previous Year - 50,000) cquity shares of Rs. 10 5.00 5.00
cach, fully paid up in Magic Genic Smartech Solutions
Limited.
14,00,000 (Previous year 14,00,000) cquity shares of Rs 350 3.50
10 each, fully paid up in Rishikesh Waste Management
Limited.
11.05 11.05
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments = -
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 11.05 11.05
5 Other financial assets
Non-current
Security deposit 8.22 8.22
8.22 8.22
6 Non-current tax assets ]
Advance payment of Tax [Net of provision 150.26 150.26
150.26 150.26
7 Non-current assets
Capital advances 267.52 267.52
267.52 267.52
8 Trade receivables (unsecured)
Considered good 864.93 864.93
Considered doubtful 0.19 0.19
From related party 4.95 4.95
870.07 870.07
I.ess: Allowance for expected credit loss (0.19) (0.19)
869.88 869.88
Ageing of trade receivables at March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6| 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than 3 Total
months 1year years years years
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - 869.88 . 869.88
(1f) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
sipnificant increase in credit risk . - 0.19 ] 0.19
(ii1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired < - (0.19) - (0.19)
(1v) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Recetvables — which have
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - .
Total - A~ 869881 (N L — 869.88
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A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED

Nctes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

\(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Ageing of trade receivables at March 31, 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6] 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than 3 Total
months 1year years years years
(1)Undisputced Trade receivables — considered good 869.88 | . 869.88
(i)Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
sigmificant increase in credit risk 0.19 0.19
(iil) Undisputed T'rade Receivables — credit impaired (019 {(0.19)
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good =
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
Total - 869.88 - - 869.88
9 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in current accounts 3.34 8.73
Cash on hand 1.04 1.04
4.38 9.76
10 Short-term Loans
Unsecured
Advances and loans to fellow subsidiaries 35.34 0.25
Interest accrued but not due from subsidiary 0.26 0.26
35.60 0.51
Loans granted to Promoters, Directors/KMPs/Related parties
Current Period Previous Period
Types of Borrower
Amount % of Amount % of Total®
outstanding Total? outstanding ool Lota
Promoters
Dircctors
KMPs
Related Parties 35.60 100% 0.51 100%%
Total 35.60 100% 0.51 100%
11 Other financial assets
Advances recoverable in cash
Considered good 7029 70.59
70.29 70.59
12 Other current assets
Advances to suppliers 59.63 19.55
Balances with government authorities - WCT/VAT credit receivable 187.72 187.72
247.35 207.27
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended Matrch 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Note 13: Share capital

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised
Equity shates of Rs 10/- each 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
0.001% Non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of 20,950,000 2,095.00 20,950,000 2,095.00
Rs 10/- each*
21,000,000 2,100.00 21,000,000 210000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 50.000 5.00 50,000 5.00
50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

* Amount pertains to preference shares accounted on amortised cost.

Note 13.1: Reconciliation of equity share capital

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
Add : Shares issued during the year
Balance at the end of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

Note 13.2: Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par valuc of Rs. 10 per share. Fach holder of equity sharc is entitled to onc votc per share and also arc
entitled to receive dividend after preference shares. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. In the events of liquidation of the Company, the
holder of equity share will be eatitled to receive remaining asscts of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Note 13.3: Detail of equity shares held by A2Z Infraservices Limited, the holding Company

As at March 31, 2023
Number of shares Amount

As at March 31, 2022
Number of shares Amount

Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
A2Z Infraservices Limited 35,000 3.50

Note 13.4: Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares

35,000 3.50

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
held held

Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
Greeneffect Waste Management Limited 15,000 30% 15,000 30%
A27, Infraservices Limited 35,000 70% 35000 70%
Note 13.5: Shares held by promoterss at the end of the year
Promoter name No. of shares held % of holding % Change during the year
A27 Infrascrvices Limited 35,000 70% -
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

15

16

17

18

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
14 Other Equity
A. Retained earnings
Opening balance (1,777.80) (1,533.46)
Add: Transfer from statement of profit (183.27) (248.67)
Add: Acturial gain/(loss) 0.12 4.33
Closing balance (1,960.95) (1,777.80)
B. Equity component of preference
Opening 1,684.67 1,684.67
Additions during the period ' =
Closing balance 1,684.67 1,684.67
C. ESOP reserve
Opening balance 0.80 0.73
Balance movement 0.26 0.07
Closing balance 107 0.80
Total reserves (275.21) (92.33)
Borrowings
Unsecured
Debt component of compound financial instruments 784.90 698.43
784.90 698.43
Termsof  Interestrate 0 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Repavment
Unsecured
Debt components of preference shares- On or before 12.38% 60.68 54.00
A27, Infraservices Limited Feb, 2027
Debt components of preference shares- On or before 12.38% 667.77 594.20
Mansi Bijlee & Rice Mills Limited Sep, 2031
Debt components of preference shares- On or before 12.38% 56.45 50.23
A27 Infraservices Limited Scp, 2031
784.90 698.43
Long-term provisions
Provision for gratuity 218 1.77
2.18 1.77_
Other non-current liabilities
Subsidy 2,012.82 2,012.82
LER for SWM land leases 298.64 298.64
2,311.46 2,311.46
Borrowings
Unsecured
Loan from fellow subsidiary company 122.15 192.19
Loan from holding and ultimate holding company 328.70 203.14
450.85 395.33
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INotes rorming part ol the nnancial statements tor the year ended ivlarch 51, U425
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

19 Trade payables

Other than acceptances: total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.65 1.06
Other than acceptances: total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterpriscs 1,312.37 1,261.70
1,313.02 1,262.76
[*]  Details of dues to micro and small
enterpriscs as per MSMED Act, 2006
- principal amount 0.65 1.06
- interest amount -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and Medium
Linterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier -
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of dclay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under - .
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year; and -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium )
linterprise Development Act, 2006
All the trade payables are short term. The carrying value of trade payables are considered to be the reasonable approximation of fair value.
Ageing of trade payables at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods fromdue date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Les}s,et::m ! 1-2 years 2-3 yeats Mote than 3 years Total
iy  MSMI: 0.30 0.35 0.65
(i) Others 170.02 6.82 1.62 98.44 1,035.48 1,312.37
(iify  Disputed dues — MSME =
(iv)  Disputed ducs - Others
Total 170.02 6.82 1.91 98.79 1,035.48 1,313.02
Ageing of trade payables at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods fromdue date of payment
Py Unbilled Lesiet::m 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
()  MSMI 1.06 1.06
(i)  Others 153.99 77.97 0.35 1.029.38 1,261.70
(iiy  Disputed dues — MSME -
(1v) Disputed dues - Others . =
Total 153.99 79.03 0.35 - 1,029.38 1.262.76
20 Other financial liabilities
Payable against purchase of property, plant and cquipment: Dues to others 3541
Amount payable to group company 687.52 614.50
Interest accrued and due on borrowings from ultimate holding company 121.95 139.88
Amount payable to ultimate holding company (Including 25.96 lakhs payable for PPK) 341.73 341.73
Temporary Overdraft 0.06 5.06
Other payable 9.35 9.35
1,160.62 1,145.92
21 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 02.92 92.66
92.92 92.66
’
- i1 Y .
22 Shor.t-.term provisions [ \’j pem N ":_\::\ )
Provision for employee lien l'\ F> v o 0.05 0.05
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A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
23 Other income
Interest income:
- on loan given to group companies 251
- on fixed deposits 0.02
= 2.53
24 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaties and bonus including directors' remuneration 22.49 2087
Pensions — defined contribution plans 0.02 0.0t
Pensions — defined benefit plans 0.54 061
Compensated absences benefits (0.21) 0.05
ESOP expense 0.26 0.07
23.10 21.62
25 Finance costs
Interest:
-on group company 86.47 126.34
-on others 14.94 15.69
Other borrowing costs:
- Bank charges 0.23 0.34
101.63 142.36
26 Depreciation
Depreciation & amortization expense 44.98 48.22
44,98 48.22
27 Other expenses
Rent 28.89
Traveling & conveyance 0.35 0.33
Insurance expenses 0.37
Legal and professional 12.64 9.48
Payment to auditors
As auditor :
- Statutory audit fee 0.13 0.30
Fees and subscription / inspection charges 0.08
13.56 39.00
i
P
]




A27Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Note 29 : EPS

Earnings per share

Both the basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated using the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company as the numerator, ie no

adjustments to profit were necessary in 2023 or 2022,

The reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share to the weighted average number of ordinary

shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

Particulars

Weighted average number of shares used in basic earnings per share
Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of share-based payments
Weighted average number of shares used in diluted earnings per share

The numerators and denominators used to calculate the basic and diluted EPS are as follows:

Profit attributable to Shareholders INR in Lacs
Basic and weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year Numbers

Nominal value of equity share INR
Basic & Diluted EPS (in Rs.) INR

Balance as on

Balance as on

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
50,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
(183.27) (248.67)
50,000 50,000

10.00 10.00
(366.53) (497.34)
o Dk,
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A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
‘Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 28 : Tax Expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Current Tax Expense - a
Deferred Tax Expense .
Tax Expense -
Reconciliation of Tax Exjense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:
For the year ended | For the year ended
March 312023 March 31 2022
Loss before tax (183.27) (248.67)
Corporate tax rate as per income tax act, 1961 26.00% 26.00%
Tax on accounting profit (47.65) (64.65)
i) Tax effect on non deductable expenses/Non taxable income 26.43 31.53
ii) Tax cffect on temporaty timing diffcrences on which deferred tax not created 3.62 3.01
iii) Tax effect on losses of current year on which no deferred tax is created 17.59 30.12
Tax Expense -
a) Detail of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax is recognised in balance sheet:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Base Deferred tax Expiry date Base amount Deferred tax Expiry date
amount (Assessment year) (Assessment year)
Tax losses
Assessment Year 2017-18 0.06 0.02 March 31, 2026 0.06 0.02 March 31, 2026
Assessment Year 2018-19 54.52 14.18 March 31, 2027 54.52 14.18 Matrch 31, 2027
Assessment Ycar 2019-20 38.27 9.95 March 31, 2028 3827 9.95 March 31, 2028
Assessment Year 2020-21 279.00 72.54 March 31, 2029 279.00 72.54 March 31, 2029
Assessment Year 2021-22 2.83 0.74 Match 31, 2030 2.83 0.74 March 31, 2030
Assessment Year 2022-23 71.55 18.60 March 31, 2031 71.55 18.60 March 31, 2031
Asscssment Year 2023-24 36.41 9.47 Match 31, 2032
Total 482.64 125.49 446.23 116.02

b) Detail of unrecognised deductible temporary differences and unabsorbed depreciation for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in financial

statements:

Unabsorbed depteciation
Expense on which TDS not deposited
Depreciation

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

AR

o Deferred tax Expiry date Base amount Deferred tax Expiry date
amount (Assessment year) (Assessment year)
435.50 113.23 Not applicable 404.24 105.10 Not applicable
. Not applicable 7.65 1.99 Not applicable
(13.72) (3.57) Not applicable (11.45) (2.98) Not applicable
422.11 109.75 400.44 104.12

-
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Related party disclosures
Names of related parties

Ultimate Holding company
A2Z Infra Enginecring Limited

Holding company
A27Z Infraservices Limited

Subsidiaries of A2Z Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited
Magic Genie Smartech Solutions Limited
Rishikesh Waste Management Limited

Subsidiaties of A2Z Infra Engineering Limited

A2Z Infrasetvices Limited

A27 Powercom Limited

Mansi Bijlee & Rice Mills Limited

Chavan Rishi International Limited (till 08.02.2022)

Magic Genie Sérvices Limited

A27 Maintenance & Engineering Services Limited and Satya Builders (Association of person)
Blackrock Waste Processing Private Limited

Subsidiaries of A2Z Infraservices Limited

Ecogteen Envirotech Solutions Limited (49% along with management control)
A27 Infraservices Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd.(till 26.04.2022)

A27 Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

Vswach Environment (Aligath) Private Limited (wef 09.12.2022)

Vsapients Techno Services Private Limited (wef 21.02.2023)

Associate enterprises of A2Z Infra Engineering Limited

Greeneffect Waste Management Limited
A27, Waste Management (Nainital) Private Limited
A2Z Waste Management (Jaipur) Ltd.

Subsidiaries of Greeneffect Waste Management Limited
A27, Waste Management (Merrut) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Moradabad) Limited

A27, Waste Management (Varanasi) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Balia) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Jaunpur) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Fatehpur) Limited

A27, Waste Management (Ahmedabad) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Mirzapur) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Ranchi) Limited

A27Z Waste Management (Sambhal) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Badaun) Limited

A2Z Waste Management (Dhanbad) Private Limited

A27 Waste Management (Jaiput) Limited

Shree Balaji Pottery Private Limited

Shtee Hati Om Utensils Private Limited

Earth Environment Management Services Private Limited

Director and KMP of the Company

M. Dilbag, Director

Mr. Shankar Paul - Ditector

Mt. Surender Singh - Director

Ms. Atima Khanna - Director (appointed w.e.f. 11.05.2022)

Ms. Chaitali Sharma - Director (appointed w.e.f. 11.05.2022) ALY L

Mr. Hamant Kumar - Chief Financial Officer By \»,

Ms. Bhaggya Makkar - Company Secretary 'ﬁ::,l' b ‘\» i/

Mr. Anand Mishta - Chief Executive Officer [.': e R L
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. {IX) Private Companies in which a Director or Manager or his Relative is a Member or Director

A WP

~

PN U SRV

Mr. Dilbag or his relatives
Pragati Das Mining India Prvate Limited

Mt. Surender Singh or his relatives

Pragati Fluids Cotpotation Private Limited
Planet Fluids Private Limited

Tanya Infra Enterptises Ptivate Limited
Pioneet Pragad Petro Projects Private Limited

Directors and KMP of Holding Company
Mt. Amit Mittal { Director)

Mits. Dipali Mittal (Whole Time Director)
Mts. Atima Khanna (Director)

Mzt. Vikas Agarwal (Director)

Ms. Chaitali Sharma (Director)
Ms. Priya Goel (Director) |




A27. WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Muae 3020 Rolared Party Teansactinns

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Ultimate
Holding
Company and
Holding
company

Enterprise in
control of KMP
and relatives

Fellow
Subsidiary

KMP and
their
relatives

Ultimate
Holding
Company and
Holding
company

Enterprise in
control of KMP
and relatives

Fellow
Subsidiary

KMP and
their
relatives

Transactions during the year

Short term loan Given

- Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

3509

57.97

Short term loan refunded

licogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

142,84

Short Term Loan & Advances Accepted

A27 Infra Enginecring Limited

130.55

239.30

A27Z Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

500

26.90

licogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

050

296 57

Short Term Loan & Advances Repaid

A27. Infra Engineering Limited

500

247 65

Iicoereen Fnvirotech Solutions Limited

7073

226.33

A27 Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

4.80

13.57

Interest expenses on loan taken

Greeneffect Waste Management Limited

15.21

A27Z Infra Engincering Limited

10.28

A27. Infrascrvices Limited

12.90

12.81

Mansi Bijlee and Rice Mills Limited

73 36

G5.46

licogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

19.91

A2Y, Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

2.67

Interest expenses on loan taken Paid

A2/ Infra Engincering Limited

12.68

licogreen Linvirotech Solutions Limited

17.92

I[nterest income on loan given

Shree Hari Om Utensils Private Limited

002

Shree Balaji Pottery Private Limited

002

Licogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

KMP Remuneration

I lamant kumar

517

517

Bhaveva Makkar

883

768

Anand Mishra

7.92

285

Vishant Chaudhacy

487

Fund Received / expense incurred on behalf of Company

Greeneffect Waste Management Limited

7302

218

A27, Infra Eagincering Limited




A2Z WASTE MANAGEMENT (LUDHIANA) LIMITED

otes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Balance outstanding as at the end of the year

Investment in equity share capital

Magic Genic Smartech Solutions Limited

500

500

- [icogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

255

2:55.

Rishikesh Waste Management Limited

330

350

Short term borrowings

Greencffect Waste Management Limited

108 62

108 62

A2Z Tnfra Eneineering Limited

31926

19370

A27Z Infraservices Limited

9.44

9.44

A27 Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

1353

1333

Ticogrecen Envirotech Solutions Limited

7023

Short term loan given

- Shree Balaii Pottery Private Limited

013

.13

Shree FHari Om Utensils Private Limited

0.13

013

Ecogreen Envirotech Solutions Limited

35.09

Other financial liability (interest accrued)

Greeneffect Waste Management Limited

11119

11119

A2Z Infra Engincering Limited

651

6.51

- A2Z Infrascrvices Limited

1.85

1.85

- Ecogreen Cinvirotech Solutions Limited

17.92

A27 Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

2 40

Other financial liability

- A27 Infra Engineering Limited

Greencffect Waste Management Limited

68637

61334

Rishikesh Waste Management Limited

Other financial assets (Interest accrued)

Shree Hari Om Utensils Private Limited

013

013

Shrec Balaji Pottery Private Limited

013

013

Investment in preferente sharcs/ debentures (Db Porien)

A27Z Infraservices Limited (Purchased from A2Z Green Waste
Management Limited

60 68

54.00

Mansi Bijlee and Rice Mills Limited

66777

59420

A2Z Infraservices Limited

5645

5023

Investment it peeferenie sharei/ debentuss (Eyuity
Portion)

- A2Z Infraservices Limited (Purchased from A27 Green Waste
Management Limited

71.16

Mansi Bijlee and Rice Mills I.imited

1.48774

1.487.74

A2Z Infrasecvices limited

125.77

Trade receivable

A27 Waste Mnnnﬁcment (Aliﬁnrh) Limited

123

A27 Waste Management (launput) Limited

372

Trade payable

A27Z Tnfra Rngincering Limited

2596

25.96

KMP Remuneration

[-lamant kumar 2.58 258
Bhagpya Makkar 2.94 192
Anand Mishra 300 171

Vishant Chaudhary

244




Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

31 Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company's contribution towards the defined contribution plan

The Company makes Provident T'und contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans for qualifying employces, as specified under the
law. The contributions are paid to the Provident Fund Trust sct up by the Company or to the respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner
under the Pension Scheme. The Company is generally liable for annual contribution and any shortfall in the trust fund asscts based on the
government specified minimum rate of return and recognises such contribution and shortfall, if any, as an expensc in the year it is incurred.

"The Company has also certain defined contribution plans. The contributions are made to providend fund in India for employees at the rate of 12%
of the basis salary as per regulations. The contribution are made to registered providend fund administered by the govenment. The obligation of the
Company is limited to thc amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation the expensce recognised during the
period towards the defined contribution plan is INR 2.23 lacs (Previous year : INR 1.81 lacs)

Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratutiy for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employces who are in continuous service of
five years are cligible to gratuity. T'he amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employces last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportonately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

A reconciliation of the Company’s defined benefit obligation (DBO) and plan assets to the amounts presented in the statement of financial
position for each of the reporting periods is presented below:

Assets and Liahility (Balance Sheet Position)

Particulars (T
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Present Value of Obligation 2.24 1.81
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Surplus / (Deficit) 2.29) (1.81)
Effects of Asset Ceiling, if any
Net Asset / (Liability) (2.24) (1.81)

Expenses Recognized during the year

For the year ending

a2 o211 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
In Income Statement 0.54 0.61
In Other Comprehensive Income (0.12) (4.33)
Total Expenses Recognized during the year 142 {3.72)

Defined benefit obligation
The details of the Company’s DBO are as follows:

Changes in the Present Value of Ohligation

. For the vear ending
fassiculacs March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 1.81 5.53
Current Service Cost 0.41 0.23
Interest [ixpense or Cost 0.13 0.38
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) gain / (loss) arising from:
- change in demographic assumptions
- change in financial assumptions (0.06) (0.01)
- cxperience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (0.05) (4.31)
- others
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 2.24 1.81
Bifurcation of Net Liability
Particulars ason
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Current Liability (Short term) £ 0.05 0.05
Non-Current Liability (Long term) ."; \, 2.18 1.77
Net Linhility L, 2.24 1.81




Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Particulars

For the year ending

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Loss / (Gain) on settlement

Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Assct)
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

0.41 0.23
0.13 0.38
0.54 0.61

The current service cost and the past service cost are included in employee benefits expense. The net interest expense is included in finance costs.

Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

For the year ending

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Actuarial (gains) / losscs
- change in demographic assumptions

- change in financial assumptions (0.06) (0.01)
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (0.05) (4.31)
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/loss arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling .
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (0.12) (4.33)
Financial Assumptions
"The principal financial assumptions used in the valuation arc shown in the table below:
. As on
Particulars
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Discount rate (per annum) 7.30% 6.95%
Salary growth rate {per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
Demographic Assumptions
Particulars Ason
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Mortality Rate (% of JALM 06-08) 100.00% 100.00%
Attrition/Withdrawal rates 2.00% 2.00%

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuaries. Discount factors are determined close to cach year-end
by reference to market yields of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s

historical experience.

Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the detemination of the defined benefit obligation are discountrate, expected salary increase and mortality. ‘T'he
scnsitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,

whilc holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulats March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Defined Benefit Obligation (Basc) 2.24 1.81
i March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Particulars 2
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (- / + 1%0) 2.43 2.07 1.96 " 1.68
(% change compared to base duc to sensitivity) 8.60% -7.50% 8.30% -7.30%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 2.06 2.43 1.68 1.96
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity -7.70% 8.70% -7.50% 8.30%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50%) 222 2.25 1.80 1.82
(%o change compared to base due to sensitivity) -0.90% 0.70% -0.60% 0.50%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10%) 223 2.24 1.81 1.81
(" change compuarcd to base due to senwtivity) O.0 8% puLt et ALOHY 0.00%
N O,
i 5
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. For change in assumptions please refer to section 5 above, where assumptions for
prior period, if applicable, are given.

L]
Maturity Analysis
There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. For change in assumptions please refer to section 5 above, where assumptions for
prior period, if applicable, are given.

6 to 10 More than 10

1year 2 to 5 years Total
years years

31 March 2023.
Defined Benefit Obligation (pension and gratuity) 0.05 0.30 235 2.04 4.74
Post - employment medical benefits . "
Total 0.05 0.30 2.35 2.04 4.74
31 March 2022.
Defined Benefit Obligation (pension and gratuity) 0.05 0.24 223 1.02 3.54
Post - employment medical benefits -
Total 0.05 0.24 2.23 1.02 3.54




Notes forming patt of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 32 : Financial risk management

(i) Fair value maesurement of financial instruments
[Financial assets and financial liabilitics measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are Companyed into three Levels of a fair value hicrarchy. The
three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that arc not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or morc of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(i) Financial Instruments by Category
I'or amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial Assets
Investment 11.05 11.05 -
"['radc Receivables 869.88 869.88
Other financial Assets 78.51 78.81
TLoans 35.60 0.51
Cash and Cash equivalents 4.38 9.76
Total Financial Assets 11.05 . 988.36 11.05 958.96

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 1,235.75 1,093.76
"I'rade payables - 1,313.02 1,262.76
Other financial liabilities 1,160.62 1145.92
Total Financial Liabilities 3,709.38 - B 3,502.44

* Investment in equity instruments in subidiaries, Joint Ventures and associates has been carried at cost as per INIDD AS 27

(ii) Risk Management
The Company’s activities exposc it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the
centity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Measurement Measurement
Credit disk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial Ageing analysis Bank deposits,
assets measured at amortised cost diversification of assct
base, credit limits and
collateral.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forccasts Availability of committed
credit lines and borrowing
facilitics

Market risk - foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and liabilitics not Cash flow forecasting l'orward

denominated in Indian rupee (INR) contract/ hedging
Market risk - interest rate Long-term botrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Cross currency fix rate
Market risk - security price Investments in equity securities Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the company) under policies approved by the board of directors. The board of
dircctors provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and investment of excess liquidity.

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. The. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
investments carried at amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the reporting date, as summarised below:

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterpartics, identified either individually or by the Company, and incorporates this
information into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterpartics arc
obtained and used. The Company’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties.

‘@ trade receivables and it does not

expect to receive future cash flows or tecoveng T jiiti of cash flows previously written off |l Loz trftain trade receivables that have not

The Company’s receivables comprises of trade recivables. During the periods presented, the Compangg-made no wrils
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Uniless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

INR
As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Not more than 30 days 0.29
More than 30 days but not more than 60 days 63.55
More than 60 days but not more than 90 days 93.70
More than 90 days 869.88 712.33
869.88 869.88

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any Company of

counterpartics having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various industries and geographical areas. Based on

historical information about customer default rates management consider the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, mutual funds, and derivate financial instruments is considered negligible, since the counterpartics are reputable

organisations with high quality external credit ratings.

B. Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of

committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Duc to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining

availability under committed facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company

takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows

in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance shect liquidity ratios against internal and external

regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities

"T'he tables below analyse the Company’s financial labilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial

liabilitics. 'I'he amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the

impact of discounting is not significant.

March 31, 2023 Less than 1 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives

Borrowings 450.85 2,047.17 2,498.02
Trade payables 1,313.02 1,313.02
Other financial liabilites 1,160.62 1,160.62
Total 2,924.48 2,047.17 4,971.65
March 31, 2022 Less than 1 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives

Borrowings 395.33 2,047.17 2,442.50
‘I'rade payables 1,262.76 1,262.76
Other financial liabilites 1,145.92 1,145.92
Total 2,804.01 - 2,047.17 4,851.18
Market Risk

(a) Interest rate risk

Liabilities

The Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing, At 31 March 2023, the Company is exposed to changes in

market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates. 'T'he Company’s investments in Iixed Deposits all pay fixed interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure

Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Variable rate borrowing

Fixed rate borrowing 1,235.75 1,093.76
Total borrowings 1,235.75 1,093.76
Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest sensitivity*

Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) 12 10.94
Interest rates — decreasce iy 100 basis prebints (100 lepushe {10.94)

* Holding all other variables constant
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 33 : Capital Management Policies and Procedures
lior the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, sharc premium and all other cquity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
The Company’ s capital management objectives are:
* to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
* to provide an adequate return to shareholders
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the equirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, retum capital to sharcholders or issuc new shares. The Company monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. ‘The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 20% and 40%. T'he Company includes
within net debt, mterest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Borrowings 1,23575 1,093.76
‘T'rade payables 1,313.02 1,262.76
Other fiancial liabilities 1,160.62 1,14592
Less: cash and cash eijunvalimig 4.38 9.76
Net debt 3,705.00 3.492.68
Equity (270.21) (87.33)
Capital and net debt Y AMT79 30554
Grearing ratio 107.87% 102.56%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensurc that it mects financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period

Note 34 : Financial ratios

S1. No. Ratio At March 31, 2023 At March 31, 2022 Variance Reason for variance
1 Current ratio 0.41 0.40 0.02 No mmur varance
il Debt-equity ratio (4.57) (12.52) (0.63) ange s on account of dwereiss m netwirthi
mi Debt service coverage ratio NA NA NA No majisr varumii
v Return on cquity ratio 1.03 (7.14) (1.14) Charip 1s on account i deerease in losses
v Inventory turnover ratio NA NA NA No 1o varance
Vi Trade receivables turnover ratio NA NA NA No majur vanance
Vit Trade payables turnover ratio NA NA NA No s vanance
Vi Net capital turnover ratio NA NA NA No rmajir vanance
X Net profit ratio NA NA NA No o varance
X Return on capital employed (0.08) (0.11) (0.20) Mis TTEAH varance
o Return on investment NA NA NA ™o major varance

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows:-

S1. No Ratios Formulae
1 Current ratio Current assets + Current liabilities
1 Debt-equity ratio T'otal debt + Shareholder's equity
Debt service coverage ratio Earnings available for debt service* + Debt Service**
v Return on equity ratio (Nct profit after tax - Preference Dividend (if any)) + Average sharcholder's equity
v Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold or sales + Average Inventory
Vi Trade recetvables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales + Average accounts receivables
Vil ‘I'rade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchases + Average trade payables
vin Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales + Working capital
1X Net profit ratio Net profit after tax + Revenue from operations
X Return on capital employed IZarnings before interest and Taxes + Capital employed****
X1 Return on investment (Current valuc of investment - Cost of investment) + Cost of investment
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. Note,s forming part of the financial itatemenis for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Uniess otherwise stated, all amnurits are in [MNR Lacs)
P

* Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes®¥#¥ + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like
loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.
Aok Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments
Aok “Net Profit after tax” means reported amount of “Profit / (loss) for the period” and it does not include items of other comprehensive income.
dokk  Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability

Note 35 : Post-reporting date events
No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the 31st March, 2023 reporting date and the date of authorisation on 18th May 2023

Note 36 : Authorisation of financial statements
"I'he Financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (including comparatives) were approved by the board of directors on .18th May 2023

For MP Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Rejon Ng4QT52IN
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Mata Prasad Dilbag Surender Singh
Proprictor Director Director
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Place : Gurgaon if Mishra i Y ; — 1 AT
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